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BY GOD'S GRACE, NOT A TYPICAL CCNGRIGATION

Introduction

The story of Trinity Lutheran Church in Jackson izn't really all
that special to the neutral observer. Like so many churches at that time
it grew from primitive log cabin existance to the brick-and stone stabil-
ity it occupies today, In that way it's basically just another old church.

What's important is not the physical growth of the church plant jtself.
Mich more precious is the pure Word of (God that's existed since time immem-—
orial, and that will last forever. Tor a church to claim this priceless
and ageless commodity as part of its heritage i= really significant., TFor
~the history of that chuich to show that Vord nourishing and strengthening
children and adults, this is indeed notable.

That's why Trinity's history is remarkable. ¥We'll see God's hand guiding
and directing the people and events that come into contact with this con-
gregation. The Lord's gracious will was done. At a time when a pastor
.from any Lutheran or geformed affiliation was welcomed by spiritually starv-
ed frontier settlers, God saw to it pure Scriptural teaching prevailed.

The early pastors who ministered to these people surely influenced
their doctrinal stance. Here God blessed the young church., And in this
way he prepared it for a much more difficult stance it would have to take
in the future when the church body it had allied itself with slipped from
the sure hold it had on God's Word,

So then, much more than seeing a church's activities, we would discover

more of God's good dealings among his people.



The Habel [ra

When the first group of Lutheran immigrants arrived in Milwaukee, most
of the territory of Wisconsin was a wilderness. The settlement itself,
at the‘mouth of thé Milwaukee tiver, was but a small village of 1200 in-
habitants. In June of 1838 the dividing of the territory of Wisconsin took’
place and the western boundary was Fixed at %he Mississippi River. As a
result of the Black Hawk War, most of the Indians were driven from the sonth-
eastern part of the state. In the treaty of 1833, the lands along the Mil-
wvaukee River were ceded by the Iﬁdians. Only a few small Tndian Qillages
remained in the state,

The Lutheran pioneers were drawn to this area along the Milwaukee
River by the good land which was said to be available. In Milwaukee a
government land office was opened for the sale of public lands. Such favor-
able publicity soon began to attract an ever increasing flow of immigrants,
including many German Lutherans,

When these Lutheran families came to Milwankee, thev set up temporary
housingy and sent out exploration parties to find land for suitable settle-
ments. Iand at that time was available for $1.25 per acre, ~550.00 for
40 acres. When the exploration rarties returned, they filed their land
claims and bought the desired land from the government. As the settlers
pushed northward, they established new settlements and new congresations
were organized;: Dévid's Star, Kirchhayn, 18433 Immanuel, Town Jackson, 1847,
The area around the church we are considering, Trinity, Town Jackson, was
settled in the early 50's. The immigrants vere. mainly Pommeranians, with
some Saxons and Prussians.

The Trinity congregation was organized by Fastor Ludwir Habel in January
of 1856. Tt was given the name "The Lutheran Community of the Triune Cod,"

Dr. Roy Suelflow,in his history of the South Wimconsin District of the Mis-

sourl Synod, called Walking with iise Men, grades Fastor {abel as one of
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the most interesting Lutheran preachers to have set foot on Yisconsin soil.lt
And indeed this enterprising man did set his Teet on quite a bit of virgin
Wisconsin soil. He was the First Lutheran pioneer in Jolumbia, Sauk, and
Dane Counties.

Originally from Prussia, he was said to have had newspaper experiance
there. 1Ie came to study at Ft. Wayne 1847-49, and was then pastor of the
Missouri congregations in Pomeroy, Chio. He seems to have had ability
for he was elected Secretary of Synod in 1850. But he felt Missouri was
too hard on the Buffalo Synod, and +thus he soon resigned his membership.

By fall of 1854 he was in Madison, as a free lance missionary. He lived
in Cottage Grove where he started Tmmanuel congregation., Ile also started
work in many other places in the three counties named. All the work which
Habel started was turned over to the Towa Synod in the mid-1850'z, that
reriod of time when Grabau of the Duffalo Synod was working on an alliance
of Buffalo and Iowa against Missouri. Gradually FPastor Habel worked his.
vay east to the Jackson area where he organiéed the Trinity congregation.

The original immigration group of Prussians who had settled in Iireh-
hayn and formed the second oldest Lﬁtheran church in the state, Iavid's
Stér,had lost their first and only pastor. This was Tastor Gustav Kinder—

mann, who had come to america with these members and helped them to orean-

ize in 1843, Davids Stern-Gemeinde called TFastor Habel. le accepted and

vas installed in the summer of 1857. David's Star at that time vas affil-
iated with the Buffalo Synod.
Pastor Habel and David's Star left Buffalo in 1862, Tastor Crabau had

demanded one cent per communicant for his own support as Senior Ministerius.

A dissension arose over this agreement and llabel took a stand againat Dnf-

falo, A small minority of David's Star members did not want to sever af-

1Hoy A. Buelflow, Walking With Wise Men (Published by the Zouth Wisconsin
District of the Lutheran Church- Iissours Synod, 1967), p, 8a,

~
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filiation with the Buffalo Synod. They witthrew and organised an opposi-~

n exigtance, one mile

Ty
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tion church, called "St. John's Chruch," TIt's =till
vest of David's Star on County Trunk G,

Pastor Habel then tried to organize a synod of his own; he alzo started
a seminary to train students for the Ministry. As far as is known, three
men were graduated, serving churches in the former Towa Simod. Habel served
David's Star until 1870. It was then he was called to Cedarburg and helped
to organize Immanuel Lutheran Chruch (ALC). At that time these Lutherans in
Cedarburg had withdrawn from the Missouri Synod. They are not to be con-
fused with FPirst Immanuel of Cedarburg, a Missouri church at the same time
period. This church had close ties with Trinity of Jacks

Before we close the Habel age in thlu area, some facts need to be
brought out about the complex Lutheran situation here. In those days, one
could find five Lutheran churches within a suprisingly small radius of each
othef. David's Star is of course the original church founded by Kindermznn's
group in 1843, Immanuel, about two miles northwest of Kin rchhayn on Mill
Road, is the congrep atlon which was organized by a group of David's Star
members who bolted the Buffalo Synod in 18@?, when Kindermann was still
there. This congregation soon joined the Missouri Symod.  For many vears
Trinity, Jackson was considered a "branch" of Immanuel, Thev shared mastors
for quite a few years.

Now the story line thickens. Tart of the Immamel church, which, hy
the way, stands only as anvhistorical landmark now, split at one time and

left the lissouri Synod. The part which split from Immamnel was called

Zion, and joined the Missouri Synod. All that is left of this Jion church

j~bo

5 the cemetary on the Ifiske farm, two miles directly south of Trinity on
highway 60. Zion later disbanded and rejoined Immanuel, which also rejoined

the Missouri Synod.

2 The 125th Anniversary Festival Publication Church H?%tory of David's Star,
put together in 1968, p. 18
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The actual location of three of these churches almoot forms a straicht
line over a five mile lenghh, with Trinity north, Zion in the middle, and
Dévid's Star south, Trinity was two and a half miles north of Zion and
David's Star was two and a half miles south of Zion.
Trinity's first pastor, Ludwig Habel, served the church in ledarbure

for several years, Ie was killed in an accident there and higz body buried

in the cemetary at Cedarburg.

mpid Growth for the New ‘hurch

Jfuch work had to be done to get the yvoung congregation on its feet,
They needed a place to call their own, where they could set up worship
facilities. BSo they was?gﬁ‘no time in acquiring one. Cn Jamary 14, 1856
they bought their first parcel of land. It comprised the area of the pre-
sent day parsonage. A log building was erected on the corner, which serv-
ed both as a house of worship and a school,

Members were to contribute one long log (30 feet plus) as well as two
short logs (20 feet plus) for every 40 acres of land they ownad. By the
fall of 18% everything was veady. The services of a lady teacher vere
engaged and the important work of schooling for the children was bermn.
Apparently this teacher, whose name has %een lost, was active in the school
until about 1880,

Although the church was without any synodical affiliation until 1858,
services were held regularly four times a vear: a worship service in ihe
nmorning and Bible study in the afternoon. iemember, Trinity did not get
its own resident pastor until 1878. ior this work the pastors who served
vwere paid $20.00 anmually. On the intervening Sundays one of the elders

or trustees would conduct a Lesegottesdienst. One of the men, a Fr. Tred

Gauger frequently served in this capacity. Ie alscofficiated at several

funerals.
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Church records for this "Lutheran Community of the Triune Cod," the
official name they kept until 1866, show that after Pastor Illabel left in
1857, Pastor Ottomar fuerbringer of freistadt did some work here. e was
rastor at Trinity, freistadt, which by now had left Buffalo and joined
with Missouri. TPastor [uerbringer's duties also included serving the
HMissourians who had earlier broken off from David's Star and formed Im—
manuel.

In the work this man did among them, Trinity, Jackson was indeed
blessed by the Loxd. [For here was a Missouri pastor of great importance
during those ‘early years. To see the force of his orthodoxy we need to
examine the earlier years of his life.

le was born in Gera, CGermany in 1819, making him 38 vwhen he served
Jacksqn's churches. When he was not yet 18, he entered the University of
Leipéig. There all but two of the professors were said to have been ration-
alistic. Besides theology, young Fuerbringér also studied pedagogy, poy-
chology, and psychiatry. In h8s second year at the university, he was
brought to a conservative Christian faith when he Joined a small circle
of believing students. Through a shoemaker named Goetsching, vho was well
acquainted with Luther's writings, these students were introduced into sound
theolpgy. Through this man also, they got to meet HMartin Stephan,

In 1831 Muerbringer met Pastor Loeber, who would later be one of the
pastors, along with Walther, of the Missouri Lutheran immigrants. He stayed
at Loeber's house for seven years. In the first year of hic stay he toolk
his examination for the ministry, Although he passed with a perfect score,
he was told that because he was too conservative he could not expect to
receive a charge.

After fuerbringer had worked under Loeber two vears, he met Stephan

personally. As a result of [uerbringer's association with Stephan, Loeber
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vas also admitted to the inner circle. Fuerbringer and Leeber were on the
same ship in the.immigration. They stayed in 3t, Louis by ordevr of Ctephan,
till a little after the deposition of Stephan, when they went to Terry Jounty.
There fuerbringer was one of those candidates who undertook the construction
of the log cabin seminary.

His first charge from there was as pastor in Elkhorn Frairie, Illincis,
Things got rough there when [fuerbringer tried changing their nse of ration-
alistic catechisms and hymnals. Someone even threatened to end the mastor's

life, and once thugs were hired to beat him up. But soon his group grew

1

and in 1847 he went to Chicago to help organize the Missouri Svnod,

Soon he accepted this call to serve at Freistadt and Kirchhayn, Vis-
consin, In freistadi a split threatened over the use of the old TFommeran-
jan Catechism. Fuerbringer was able to prevent this. In 1854 when Synod
was divided into four districts, he was elected presidet of the Northemm
District, in which capacity he served until 1872, As one of four dictrict
presidents he was in a position of real leadership in the synod. TIn 1858
he accepted the call to serve as pastor in [Prankenmuth, Iiichiran,

About Merbringer, Dr. Suelflow says,

fuerbringer vas not only a scholar and theologian of rreat
ability, but what is more, he was thoroughly evanrelinal in
his approach as a parish pastor. . . He had a charismatic
gift by means of which he was able to make a beginning at
solving some of the tortuous and frustrating problems which
faced Lutherans in the period of resettlement on the imer-
ican frontier . . . (lle) was a most capable preacher and
nissionary in a very critical area.

Pastor I'riedrich A, Ahner from Tirst Immamiel of Jedarburs also
served the members of Trinity, Jackson at this time. Ile was born in 1835,
in Buegstedt, Saxony, making him 33 at the time he assisted in Jackson.

He ame to St. Louis in 1839, and studied at the Altenbure College, e

was sent %o lock Island, Illinois, where he was ordained in the summer of

3R.Oy A, Buelflow, op. cit., p.51.
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1856, He worked in dock Island only a few moﬁths. Wle suddenly find him
working in Grafton and Cedarburg already in 1856, althoush he was not in-
stalled there till December 6, 18_5'7.LP He worked at ™irst Immanuel Ffor
seven years, and then took a call to Irankentrost, lMichigan in 1863,
It was evidently under Pastor Ahner that‘Trinity, Jackson affiliated it~
sélf with the Nissoﬁfi Synod. Tor the 1857 congrepational statistics for
the Northern Diétrict show Ahner with two churches, but the '58 edition
of the Northern District Iroceedings shows him serving three churches,

It was afterithis that Trinity and Immanmuel of Jackson were consi-
dered almost a dual parish. Immanuel would call the pastor and he would
have his parsonage on Immanuel's property, but he would always share his
services with the congregation at Trinity. This situation existed From
1858-1872. 1In 1859 Tmmanuel called Pastor Heinrich Jox. In 1855 as a
young candidate of theology, Jox had been sent to serve St. John's church
Maple Grove, lManitowoc County. He developed work in Manitowoc and in Towm
Morrison, and also founded St. Peterfs congregation, Town Easton. -But he
could not hang on there. Soon his health began to break under the trying
labors. The negative response he met in his congregutions and the competi-
tion from the Wisconsin Synod forced him to resign in a few ye&rs.6
There was a considerable gain in membership during his pastorate. Jox
served faithfully until 1865. Then for nearly two years both Immanuel and
Trinity were without a pastor.

The year 1866 marked several milestones in the congregation's history.
The first baptism was recorded in January., The constitution was drawn up
on february 22nd. Even the congregation's name was changed from The Luth-

Community of the Triune God" to the rather lengthy "iMrst Lvangelical Luth-

YNorthern District Proceedings, 1858, p. 10.
51bid., 1858, p. 38.
61bid., 1859, p. 13.
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eran 'Dreieinigkeits' Jongregation of the Unaltered Angsburg Zonfession
at Cedar Creek." One can almost sense here a much more ctrict adherance
to Scriptures and a greater commitiment to the Lutheran Tonfessions than
previously. One must remember that the congregation itself gt this name
together without the ald of any pastor. It seems they bad learned the
lessons the Bible and such early pastors as Tuerbringer had left with them,
It is something they treasured and would later not let go of,

dev. Alex Stamm accepted the call to serve Immanuel and Trinity in
1867. The young pastor was born in 1847 in Switzerland. During his pis-
torate a second marcel of land, which now includes the "old" cemetary was
purchased in 1867. Stamm served for threevyears:-until 3870, ~In 1872-=.
he died of small pox at the age of 25, Rev. I. Boelings served the churches
from 1870-72,

Afterwards Rev. John Hehry Meyer took over as pastor of hoth congre-
gations beginning in 1872, He was born in 1833 aud praduated from Fort
Hayne practical Seminary in 1861. From there he served pariches in Mich-
igan ;n&;Illinois. In 1877 he left Immanuel and Trinity to take a call
to Indiana. A large number of baptisms for those days, 82, in fact, took
place during his tenure.’

The first time a male teacher is mentioned in the church records is
in 1876, where it mentions feacher Schlachet's mame. Little more is known,
other than the fact that Trinity's forefathersconsidered a Christian Day
School to he a prime necessity for the spiritual prowth of their childwen. .

Under Tastors Stamm and Meyer, the congresation continued to grow in
the log church., 1In X875, there was considerable interect in iildine a
more modern church building. After investigation, it was reported that
a suitable building could be built of -field stone for 5503.00, or of

white brick for [853.00. That was September 19, 1875. fThe consresation

7Irinity's 125 year Jubilee Booklet (Printed in 1081), p. 15,
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decided to build with field stone.

The building was not started righf away. On June 5, 1876, a meeting
vas held in which the motion was made to remair the old building instead
of building a new church., Ho second was recorded, but a delay followed.
By 1878, the cost of building with bricks had risen to £1,000.,00.  Now,
however, the congregation was ready to éet on with the project.

The bricks were purchased at Port Wasﬁington and brought by the mam-
bers to the church site by horse and wagon. The trip took one full day,
Since the walls of the chuch are solid brick about 13 feet thick, many a
stout back, but more importantly, many a pilous heart was required to get
the Job done.

Besides the building of its brick ediface, Trinity was alzo blessed

i
=
~
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with another first, its st resident pastor, lev. W. G. Polack, in 1878,
lev. Tolack was born in Weisseichen, Ohio, in 1853. [He graduated Trom

S5t. Louis in 1875 at age 22. He served Dreieinigkeits Lutheran for one

year. According to the records he resigned twice from the ministry and
seemed to serve congregations for a very short time; he had four marishes
in an eleven year career. e resigned for the last time in 1880 and died
in 1912 at age 59.

The church building, with a Christian Day School on the lower level,
was dedicated some time during 1879, Ho record of the dedication hag heen
Found, perhaps because lJev. Folack was forced to resign due to his failing
health. The building may have been dedicated during a pastoral vacancy
and therefore not recorded in the church records.

The next resident pastor was .lev. George W. Mueller who served the
congregation from 1879 to 1884, TPastor Mueller was born in Thiladelphia,
Pennsylvannia in 1858. lle graduated from St. TLouis in 1879, This vas
his first parish and from here he vent to a professorship at Concordia,

Milwaukee. He retired there in 1936 and died in Milwavkee at age 91 in 104g,
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An interesting sidelight in Trinity's history is the story}ﬁhe sreat
dedication of one of'the congregation's Tirst resident pastorsj KApparent—
ly at ohe time Trinity's pastor also served the Zion church two and a half
miles directly south on what is now highway 60. Tt's said that on a cer-
tain winter Sunday a pafticular rastor got lost in a snow storm while
crossing the Jackson Marsh. The marsh, a swampy area between Trinity and
Zion, can be hard to find one's way outr;ven in good weather. The man
nearly lost his life before finding his way out. After that the congre~
gation refused to let their pastor serve otheqbongregations in Jackson
during inclement weather.

Rev. Carl Baumann, born in Jazel, Germany, in 1850 was pastor of Trin-
ity from 1884 to 1904, 20 yedrs. During his ministry there the teacherare
and five acres of land were purchased in 1887for the price of $500,00.

The house was‘remodeled before the next teacher, P, E. Albert was installed.

In 1889 it was noticed that the walls of the church were settling out-
ward., To éorrect this, tie rods, one and a half inches thick were inctal
at several places both across the width and the length of fhe building,8
The ends of some of these rods are visible on the outside walls. Also
during this time, in 1895 specifically, the present rarsonage was built.,

That same year the qnly son of the congregation to enter the ministry,
Halter Ceidensticker, was bofn. lle went to school at Concordia, Milwaukee,
and from there to the seminary at Springfield, Illinois, gradvating in 1919,
During his lifetime in the ministry, he zerved mission chruches ixn Oklahoma
and Alberta, Canada. Later he became public relations director for leth-
esda Lutheran llome of Watertown, Serving throughout the United States,

he served in that capacity until 1960, when he moved to Bethel, Maine.

He was called to his heavenly home on jugust 25, 1969,

8Tbid., p. 7.
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The congregation was proud of its Ffine band which was formed in 1808,

Like other congregations in the area at that time, the band sometimen would

o0n

lead the congregation in service music. 4 pipe organ was bhuilt in the choir
loft in 1905. Neither the old log éhurch nor the mew church wvas equinped
withAan organ in the early years. Singing was led by a Lbré&nng elected
by the congregation.

Church records show #hat in 1905 an additional three acres of land,
which are presently the "new" cemetary and park, both across the street
from the church, were purchased.

Jev. August Mueller, born in Theresa, Wisconsin, in 1882, served the

congregation from 1904-1908. Ile was followed by dev. 7. T. Dertinon vho

served until 1910 as vacancy pastor.

The Otto Years

flev. Terdinand Otto, born in Germany, in 1879, came to serve the con-
gregation in the spring of 1910, e remained at the church For M years,

If there is one pastor who seems to be synonymous with Trinity, lastor 0fto
would have to be the man. iHe was clearly and dearly loved by the peorple.
it is interesting to note, regardless of what the congregation’s official
name vas, during the first half of the Z0th century, the congregation was
bétter known as ".ev. Otto's church,"

In 1930, Trinity had a chance to return the favor Immanuel had shared
with them for so many years. With the consent of the Trinity conéregation,
Pastor Otto accepted an additional call to serve Immanuel Zv. Lutheran hureh
of Jackson. He served both congregations until his retirement in 1050,
Trinity later granted him an honorary membership in the congrepation.

During these years a Ffirst major addition to the church was undertzalken,

Built on were the wood frame sanctuary, sacristy and furnace room on the

north end of the building. This addition was completed in 102
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Fart of the church property at that time included what was called
the "instruction hou;e." The instruction house was a =mall building lo-
cated on the southwest corner of the parsonage lot. The mastor wonld
meet here with the confirmation class each morning to pive instruction
on the Catechism. 5tudents would walk Trom the school in the church
basement for an hour of instruction and then return for resular clasces,
Warm Indian Summer mornings, a fresh winter snow fall, or 3 balmy spring
day tended to lengthen the time it took to traverse the short distance.

For many years the church, instruction house, and school were heat-
ed by wood~burning stoves and furnaces. A Muel Committee was anpointed
by the congregation to collect $2.00 from each family. This money was
used to purchase wood locally and was then hauled to the church and sai-
ed by members of the congregation. The woodshed, which once gtood on the
site of the present school, now serves as a lunch stand in the church nark.

In 1936, the English language made its first inroads on the tradition-
al German. Divine services were held in Inglish approximately once a
month.

1943's significant event touched functioning of the Christian Day
school.  Because there was no teacher available, the school was closed
for that year.

Until 1945, all church records werevkept in German. The minutes
from the annual meeting in January of that year weve the first to be
written in English, In the same year the parsonage and teacherare were
modernized by the installation of a water system,

In order to eliminate the need to have elders personally collect
contributions, the envelope system was developed in 1946. Terpetual
-are vas added to the cemetary that year, and also further remodel ines

vas done in the parsonage.
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One afternoon, in November of 1948, the teacher and school children
vere stunned by a tremendous thunderclap during an umsnally late autumn
thunderstorm. Lightning had struck the church steeple. By the srace of
God there were no injuries. However, damage to the cross, steeple, and
other parts of the building were extensive. After mich deliberation,
with some thought given to removing the steeple, . the congregation decid-
ed to replace the cross and repair the steeple. The present neon lights
vere added to the cross in 1969,

Also in 1948, a Nurlitzer electric organ was purchased to replace
the pipe organ which had been used for 43 years. Already back on Jamwary
7, 1945 an organ fund had been étafted. A tommittee had also been select-
ed to look into the possibiiity of purchasing a used organ, A vear later,
"the organ question was discussed but no action taken."? it a special
meeting on February 15, 1948, it was reported that the organ was in very
bad shape and that the repairman refused +to work on it anymore, The Trust-
ees were then asked to gather information and fifures on a new organ,

On Aprii b4th the Wurlitzer was Placed in church for a two week trial

and two weeks later the organ was purchased for SH,100,00.  Mav 30th

was the date selected to dedicate the organ with services in the morning
and evening,

School children carried drinking water to the school From ejther the
rarsonage or cemetary pump until 1952, This era ended when a well, water-
system, and restfooms were added to the school and chuirch.

Through the Loml's blessings, enrollment jin the school increased to
the peint where it became necessary to add a part time woman teacher in
1953, A curtain vas installed to temporarily make two clascrooms out of

one.

Yiongregational Minutes of Jan. 6, 1046,
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The Centennial Years

dev. Henry Kuring, bhorn in dylie, Minnesota in 1896, accepted the
congregation's call in 1954, In July of that year, the Trustees and
Board of Education were instructed to direct the congregation in its
plans for a new school building,

The Christian Day School was blessed further in 1955 ten Charles
Zitzmann accepted the call to become principal, Mr. Zitzmann served
in this capacity for 23 vears. During this time his enerpy, enthusiasnm,
and Christian dedication were an inspiration for both the school child-
ren and the entire congregation. His concern for the welfare of the

A

congregation and his love for the pure truths God has set forth in the

Bible were evidenced by his leadership during the trying days following
the sudden death of then Pastor malk, Quite a bit of his knowledge and
information he had compiled were called upon to mut together this rapar,
On July 5, 1956, the congregation celebrated the chuich's Centennial
with a Divine Service in the mrk. Also during this year, the name of

the church was officially changed from “The Tirst German Lvangelical

Lutheran Dreieinigkeit's Congregation of the Unaltered Augsbure Confession

at Cedar Creek" to "Trinity Bvangelical ILutheran Chruch." A new Ing?

=h
constitution was also adopted.

The congregation voted to proceed with the huilding of a new scheool
in 1957, Ground breaking services were held on April 28th and the corner-
stone-laying took place on September 29th, A Dedication Serviece for the
new school was held on May 18, 1958, jformer teachers and pastors, along
with neighboring congregations, joined the members in the worshlp rer-
vice. Guest speaker were lev. Sullivan of Concordia and .ev. Braner of
the District Office.

Light years later on Mav 22, 1966 the mortgase of the school was Tnmrned
v H P [Nt
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Total costs including fixtures were $68,759.1Q.1Q Vith the additional
space now available, -the uze of the "instruction house" became part of
history, It was sold later and removed from the church property in
1959, 11

dev. Herbert D, Ioellot, born in Huntly, Illinois in 1904, was in-
stalled as the next pastor in June of 1958, He served until August of
1961, when he took a leave of absence due to illness., Tastor . Ilisch-
ke served as vacancy pastor.

The church was redecorated in 1959. Besides repainting, other im-
provements were made which included the installation of the Communion
rail and the removal of the west sta¥ay to the choir loft,

On the first Sunday of September in 1962, Jev. Kenneth joever was
installed as pastor, .ev, Hoever was Born in the Town of Trenton, Wis-
coﬁsin, in 1929, He served as mstor until accenting another call in
1965. Rev. Ilischke once agadn served as the vacancy pastor,

Also in 1962, the old bamm at the teacherage was replaced with a new
garage and breexe way. During the next year the parsonage was remodeled
and new siding was installed for over $5,OOO.OO.12

In 1965, Jev. Erick ifalk, born in Milwaukee in 1899, hecan his nac-
toxal service at Trinity. He was with the congregation until his death
in 1971,

In 1967 another large amount of money (34,402,10)13 was invested
in replacing the phurch steps and installing the present chuch doors.
New carpeting, purchased by the ladies Aid, was installed in the church
jin 1968, Improvements to the parking lot, which included black topping

and a new west exit, were completed in 1970,

10¢ongrepational Minutes of April 24, 1966.

1l1hid., from cet. 18, 1950
12Tbid., from Aue. 27, 1964
13 Ibid., from Aug. 1, 1967
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The Break from [Missouri

Trinity had been a loyal member and staunch supporters of the Luth-

Shurch - Missouri Synod for many years. However,many of Synod's

actions became increasingly recognized as unscriptural. Trinity was

patient until the Synod Convention of 1969, where altar and tulnit fel-

lowship with the ALC was approved. After a number of coneregational meet-

ings,

the church drew up a resolution of protest and concern and sent it

to the Synod. As seen from below, it gives the reasons for ite nrotest,

Whereas, In recent years the teaching and acceptance of falre
doctrine has received virtually no disciplinary action with
the Luth. Church~Mo. Synod, Hamely: 1) The inerrancy of ioly
- Seripture; 2) The denials of many miracles recorded in Lerip-
ture; 3) The Creation; 4) The Virgin birth of Christ; 5) The
fesurrection of the body; 6) The full Deity of Christ.

Whereas, In 1967 the Luth. Church-Mo. Synod entered into the
Lutheran Jouncil in the United States of america (LCUSA), an
affiliation, in which joint religious planning and action are
carried on, even though there is no unanimity of doctrine and
practice, plus the expenditure of $750,000 for this purnose s

Whereas, In 1969 the Iuth. Church-Mo. Synod declared itself in
fellowship with the ALC despite the fact that there are wide
areas of disagreement on doctrines of Scriptures This decision
decision was made by a majority vote contrary to the Consti-~
tution of Synod: Art. VIII, J, which states: "All matters

of doctrine and of conscience shall be decided only hy the
Word of God."

©

D

£

Whereas, The Luth. Jhurch-Mo. Synod has failed to discipline
the dalther League for the unChristian direction given our
young people despite the many protests raised hy coneresations
in Synod;

Whereas, Contrary to doctrine and practice of our Synod, the
Luth., tChruch-Mo. Synod decided to allow woman suffrape, bhoth
in the congregations and in the Synod structure:

desolved, That [rinity Lutheran church, it. 1, Yest Bend, ui.,
inlform the Luth, Chruch-lo. Synod that it can no lonper con-
consider Synod to be an orthedox ILutheran bodys

That Tfinity Luth. Church declare itself to he in a state of
Confessional protest against the mentioned unseriptural actions
and doctrinal stance of the Luth. Church-Mo. Symod s

That Trinity Luth. Church shall make every effort, tooethewr with
other concerned congregations and pastors to bring about dis-
ciplinavy action, and if necessary, expulsion from Svnod, upon
those who are responsible for the teaching of false doctrine
and practice within Synods ”
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desolved, That Trinity Luth. Chruch shall as of Dea. 1,

1949 use all monies, given to the Chruch at large, to the
glory of God by assigning it directly to a specific Misgion,
to an LWHL project, or to Missions outside the Luith. Churche
fo. DSynod;

That Trinity Luth. Church will reconsider its membership with-
in 8ynod, if within a reasonable period of time there is no
improvement or return to sound seriptural doctrine and practice.ma

Principal Zitzmann had taken an active stand for this protést., &
himself had grown up with a strong LC~MZ backround, his father and grand-
father being pastors. Already then he was aware of an insidious laxity
in his church body. Although his plans for the preaching ministry had +to
be changed, he had received thorough doctrinal training under men like
Dr. Becker while in college studying for the teaching ministry. 2o
when he was called to Trinity he joined in its members' concern for
Missouri's policies.

Although Fastor ialk was alive at the time Trinity filed its of-
ficial protest, Mr. Zitzmann proved instrumental in seeing the action
through., While Fastor Palk's support wasn't extremely vocal, his silent
consent in pursuing this matter encouraged the principal,

As can be expected, Trinity soon received letters Ffrom Symodical
representatives. On March 16, 1970, FPresident J. A. O. Treus gsent a letter
saying,

Needless to say, I am sorry that you have passed this resolu-
tion and would urge you to reconsider. T realine that con

gregations ultimately have the right to mke their owm de
sions, but I helieve that your present decision is a mictale,

3.

By March 26, a letter from 1. . Baxmann, I'resident of the Jouth is-
consin District, was also received. He stated that although Trinity
might find liberals in such a large body, he felt'at that time Missouri

was still an orthodox body,

On June 6, 1971, the congregation was shocked by the death of Tzstor

falk,

Lps oy ot g s
14vchristian News," vol. 2, No. 12, March 23, 1970, p. 1, 12
H - - ~ . bl

)
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thile their pastor was alive, the congresation had taken no further
action in this synod matter. After he died, thev wonld not czll a mastor
from the Synod a@ainst which they were protesting, They did hovever ac-
cept the services of a Missouri vacancy mastor, ev. Blieke Trom ™Mret
Immanuel of Grafton. Trinity would wait until after the '71 Synod Conw
vention on Milwaukeé. Once they had seen Synod's actions there, they
would know how to proceed.

During the Convention, held in mid-July, newspaper accounts from the
Journal and Sentinel kept Trinity informed on the direction MNiscouri
would take. However)nothing encouraging transpired durine the convention
to answer their prayers. Therefore, Trinity moved swiftly.

By August 5 a letter from Fastor i&.J. Mcliiller, mastor of a church

in Okauchee, Wisconsin, had been sent to Mr. Zitzmann., cliiller was +he

€2

ecretary of the Federation for suthentic Imtheranism. This letter re-

sponded to a request by IMr. Zitzmann for "names of pastors who might be

placed on the call list for the congregation.” It was an inquiry that

Irinity would subsequently not follew up by calling an 7.A.L. man,

Six days later the congregation in a special gatherirg was able to

question District Iresident Karl Barth about svnodical policies that had

upset them. The congregation's chairman, Hr. Verlyn Hmeger, another law-
man, Mr. Yoehm, and Trinity's spokesman, Mr. Zitzmann, were the most vo-
cal representatives of the church in voicing their dissatisfaction and
inguiring about Missouri's response. But bhasically all “ev, Barth conld
do was plead with them to remain with Missouri and wait For immentent
changes.,

Trinity had badly wanted that meeting to settle the donhts that
plagued them. But after it was finished, they saw clearly the direction
they had to follow. So on Aupust 25, 1971, by a vote of 4Z-12 the congre-

gation terminated fellowship with Missouri. The resolution they drew un
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Tound below.

Whereas, Trinity Lutheran Congregation, on eb, 15, 1970,
entered into a state of confessional protest with the LI~
MS, and

Whereas, this protest concerned itself with the lack of
disciplinary action of members of the LU~i3 who no longer
hold to such doectrines as 1. the inerrancy of Scriptures;
2. the factualness of miracles; 3. the (reation; 4. the
Yirgin Birth ofChrists; 5. the Jesurrection of the body:
6. the full Deity of Christ, and

Whereas, this progtest also concerned itself with fellow-
ship with ALC with whom we have no agreement in doctrine
and practice in such critical areas as inerrancy, inspira-
tion, authorship of the Bible, the lodge, memhership in the
LWF, WCE, and fellowship with the LCA, and

Whereas, this protest had many other concerns, such as LI~
M5's affiliation with the Lutheran Council in the United
states (LC/USA),  the unChristian direction given our young
people in the Walther League, and women suffrage, and

Whereas, none of these concerns have bheen dealt with adeguate-
ly either administratively or at a synodical convention, and

Whereas, since our protest, other developments have occurred
that further undermine the authority of Scripture, Synod's
constitution, and even our congregation's constitution; namely,
1. in "A Call to Opemnness and Trust" the view exnreﬁ“ed chal-
lenges the Lutheran doctrine of the real presence of Christ in
the Loxd's Supper; 2. the Ordination of women in the ALD with
whom we are now in fellowships 3. the promotion of Nission-
Life materialss 4. a Minority Mission Board report that the
Milwavkee Convention did not handle in a positve manners: 5.
the Early Communion-Late Confirmation option given at the
Milwaukee Convention (Synod's Constitution - article ITT,
point five) and

Whereas, this duplicity in doctrine and practice invites constant
bickering, casts Jjudgments on men instead of the issves in-

velved, and in general, leads to a climate that can be offen-~

sive to those within the church and also the world, be it therefore

fesolved that Trinity Lutheran Chwvech, 2. 1.1, West Bend, Uis-
consin (Town of Jackson) terminate its affiliation with the
Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod, and be it further

aesolved To formally notify the President of the South Uis-
consin District of Missouri Synod and the Iresident of +h
Lutheran Jhurch-{Tissouri Synod that as of Aupust 25, 1971,
Trinity Congregation has severed all ties with the Miszouri
Synod. L5

The termination meeting brought in 54 of the estimated 70 possible

voters, those men above age 21,16 Jerlyn reger reported to the press

15
16

Ibid., /ol. 4, No. 32, September &, 1971, p. 1, 12.
"The Milwaukee Journal," August 28, 1971.



-21-
that "the move had strong support amone the church council and among the
total membership of about 320 sonls. 17

Once the congregation had made a clean break with Mizzouri in this
way, one hig question remained. Who will be in the pulpit core Sunday?
This was foremest in the conwregaﬁion's mind., The dav after the big
meeting, Mr. Zitzmamm met with President 0.J. Naumann in Milwankee., Ire-

ed in fellowship with the W.E.L.S.

13

Since Mr. vitzmann had also come into contact with the Z.L.Z, durine

his Bethany days, he also contacted them. The IL.L.3. also assured him

they too were willing to offer pulpit help “during the synodical transi-

. . . RYNS
tional period and until the congregation calls a minister of its own."

Meanwhile Iresident Preus of liissouri responded to news of Trinity's

actions. TIn a letter dated September 9, he voiced his regret with their

termination and asked them to invite President Barth to speak to them a-
gain. Two days later the Hilwaukee Sentine#ﬁan an article where Fresident
rreus commented on the secessions of three southeastern Yisconsin churches,
one of which was Trinity., He =aid,

It breaks my heart ... These congregations and their rastors
are really Contrlbuting nothing to the canse of the Lutheran
church and itz problems. I seriously doubt that they'l1 Tind
themselves any better off anywhere elzse than they are now, 19

Trinity's syncdiczl transitional period would not he a long one,
On September 8, 1971, they held a meeting to consider futnre grnodical
affiliation. Unanimously the B.L.3. was chosen. & revwspaper report read;

Rev. George Orvick, president of the E.L.Z. and 2ev. Yillianm
Petersen of Grace Church in HMadison were dresent for the ment-
ing to outline their synod's confessional stance and to anmier
questions concerning the structure and operation of the I.1.,2.
.. v, Adolph Harstad, former chaplain of Bathesds Lutheran
Home in Yatertown, will serve as vacancy pastor until Trinity
has installed a pastor of its own." 20

17ncedarbure News Graphic? Sept. 1, 1971.
18myest Bend News," Sec. 1, Avegust 28, 1971, ». 5.
lg"”he Milwaukee “@ntinel," Septembher 11, 1971,

20wiast Bend Mews," Sec. 1, September 10, 1071, p. 12,
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Fart of the church's decision to po with the #.1.3. was 3 matter of
practicality. IF they would have affiliated with the Y.E.L.3., thev'd
have had difficulties having their children bussed to their Christian
Pay School. The problem was that other ¥W.2.01,%., schools like Iavid'e
star and 5t. John's of Hewburg were so close to Trinity. Oome of Trin
ity's students lived very close to those areas. The bus service wonuld
be hard pressed. to bus children from one same area, like Jackson or Jew

' a.. . . -
burg, and take them to, different schoolg of the same denomination., If
Trinity went with the 1.1.3., they'd be recognized as part of a distinet
church demomination different from the W.E.L.S. Then the bussing would
be no problem,

Aprarently soon after Trinity applied for £.1.5. memberzhip, ques-
tions arose at Trinity. Some said because the church had Joined that
Synod, there would he major changes afoot. To quell the fears Tresident
Crvick and Fastor Harstad wrote to Trinity assuring thenm

membership in the Evangelical Lutheran Synod will not hring
about any changes as regards Hymnal, Orvder of Service, or
any other congregational arrangements that have heen made
at Trinity, Things will remain the same, and, of course,
the doctrine remains the same as that to vhqoh Trinity has
been committed through the many years of its existence.
Also, the officers of the congregation inform us that ceme-

tery rights remain as they are, o one will loze his rights
in the cemetery.

On Octobef 10, after finding out their first call to a pastor would
be returned, they called lev. Paul Anderson of the I.L.S. e was born
in Beaver Creek, Minnesota in 1920, and served Trin nity intil 1979,

Things began to return to normal again., The congregation could Te-
lax and get on with the business at hand, preaching Cod's ford, They
relished this work in their new environment, a conservative chnrch hody,

In fact Mr. Zitzmann would be gquoted in the "Lutheran centinel, "

Tt will be refreshing to work within a gynodical hody that
still speaks God's truth with one voice, bonudvvut1ves ho
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remain in their liberal organizations work under +the horrible
dilemma of having to speak against the organization of vhich
they are members, or worse yeth, of having to deny the Lord
who hought them by remaining quiet and pr9+end1n~ there iz
no problem. A
A new Allen electric organ was purchased by the congresation and de~
dicated to God's glory on aApril 29, 1979 with a special service. Ixten
sive redecorating was done in the church as rart of their Centennial cel-
ebration for their church building. A special Centennial service was held
on HMay 20. During this year the custom began of using individual clasces
with the common cup for Communion services. The Mew International Yersion

of the Bible was approved for Seripture reading in church services,
In June of that year the present principal, Hr. Leonard Fngel accept-
ed their call to be principal and teacher of grades Tive throuch eight,

In August the present pastor, lev. Kenneth V. Schmidt was installed,

We look with awe at the people in the Bible who wera led directly
by God. Ve remember how God spoke to Moses and the Children of Israsl,
We're inspired by the insight Faul gave the early Christian churches
through his God-breathed letters. But were these such extraordinary
cases’

Thanks be to God, they're not. Yhenever a congreration of Christians
is led by the holy, inspired Word ofGod, the Lord is in a very re-1 sense
guiding and ruline these people himself. So also for this Trinity church.
Although For all the world i+ seems an average church; we Fnow hetter,

It takes orders from God alone. [e himself protects it and takec a pen-
sonal interest in it, e Fforgives all mistakes intentional or otheriise
vhich they might make. oo then, Trinity really is, by Cod's erace, not

a typicsl congregation,

“1”Lu theran Sentinel," yol. S+, No. 19, Cct. 14, 1971, p. 302
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